
1 

 

North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

OFFICIAL AGENDA 
 

REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 
VILLAGE HALL 

1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL 33141 

TUESDAY, JUNE 14, 2016 
7:30 P.M. 

 
NOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN TO ALL INTERESTED PARTIES THAT IF ANY PERSON SHOULD DECIDE TO APPEAL ANY 
DECISION MADE AT THE FORTHCOMING MEETING OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION, SUCH PERSON WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, HE OR SHE WILL NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE 
BASED.  THIS NOTICE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE VILLAGE FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF 
OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED 
BY LAW.   
 
TO REQUEST THIS MATERIAL IN ACCESSIBLE FORMAT, SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETERS, INFORMATION ON ACCESS FOR 
PERSON WITH DISABILITIES, AND/OR ANY ACCOMMODATION TO REVIEW ANY DOCUMENT OR PARTICIPATE IN ANY 
VILLAGE-SPONSORED PROCEEDING, PLEASE CONTACT (305) 756-7171 FIVE DAYS IN ADVANCE TO INITIATE YOUR REQUEST.  
TTY USERS MAY ALSO CALL 711 (FLORIDA RELAY SERVICE). 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

ROLL CALL 

2. A. PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS 

1. NORTH BAY VILLAGE SCHOLARSHIP AWARDS 
2. MS. LUZ M. DELUQUE - TREASURE ISLAND ELEMENTARY MUSIC 

TEACHER (CHIEF OF POLICE CARLOS NORIEGA) 
3. TREASURE ISLAND RETIREES – GAIL ENGELMAN AND DR. VELMA 

PALMER (MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS) 
 

B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

1. SCHOOL BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY - IB PROGRAM 

2. DR. GAYLE CARSON, CSP CMC, BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT 
CONSULTANT, THE CARSON RESEARCH CENTER (VICE  MAYOR 
JORGE GONZALEZ 
 

C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

3. GOOD & WELFARE 

4. BOARD REPORTS 



2 

5. PUBLIC SAFETY DISCUSSIONS 

6. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORT 

7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

8. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 

9. FINANCE REPORT 

10. CONSENT AGENDA: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are 
not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be adopted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE SECOND 
ADDENDUM TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT (“LEASE”) 
BETWEEN NORTH BAY VILLAGE (“VILLAGE”) AND 
CAUSEWAY TOWER LLC (“LESSOR”), FOR THE USE OF 
OFFICE SPACE LOCATED AT 1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, 
SUITE 300; PROVIDING FOR EXECUTION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK ROLLASON) 

 
The proposed Resolution will extend the lease agreement for the use of 
the office and operational space for the Village’s administration and 
police operation in Unit 300, until June 2018, with a one-year renewal 
option. 
 

B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE FIRST ADDENDUM 
TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT (“LEASE”) BETWEEN NORTH 
BAY VILLAGE (“VILLAGE”) AND CAUSEWAY TOWER LLC 
(“LESSOR”), FOR THE USE OF OFFICE SPACE LOCATED AT 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, SUITE 101; PROVIDING FOR 
EXECUTION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK ROLLASON) 
 
The proposed Resolution will extend the lease agreement for the use of 
the space for the Commission Chambers, the Building Department, the 
Post Office, and Cashier Operations in Unit 101, until June 2018. 
 

C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE 
SUPERINTENDENT OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PUBLIC 
SCHOOLS TO FORM AN EDUCATION COMPACT WITH 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY MAYOR CONNIE 
LEON-KREPS) 
 
 



3 

The proposed Resolution will allow a partnership with Miami-Dade 
County Public Schools to bring together the organizations’ collective 
resources for the benefit of the students and citizens of North Bay 
Village. 
 

D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN INTERLOCAL 
AGREEMENT WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA FOR 
THE REIMBURSEMENT OF PARKING FINES; 
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
THE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 
 
The proposed Resolution will allow an agreement with Miami-Dade 
County, Florida for reimbursement of a portion of the fines collected 
from citations written by Village law enforcement personnel for 
vehicles parked in handicapped spaces that do not display a State issued 
handicapped license plate or handicapped placard. The funds will be 
used to improve accessibility and equal opportunity to qualified persons 
who have disabilities and to conduct public awareness programs in the 
Village. 

 
E. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT 
WITH COASTAL SYSTEMS INTERNATIONAL, INC., UNDER 
THE PIGGYBACK PURCHASE PROVISION,  PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 36.25(J) OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES, FOR THE PURPOSE OF PROVIDING 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES RELATIVE TO 
THE PROPOSED NORTH BAY VILLAGE BOARDWALK AND 
DOCK PROJECT (SPECIFICALLY, FIELD DATA 
COLLECTION, PERMIT SKETCHES, AND ASSOCIATED 
MEETINGS) AT AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $40,000; 
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
ANY REQUIRED AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS OF THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED FUNDS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 
The proposed Resolution will waive competitive bidding and authorize 
the Village Manager to engage the services of Coastal Systems 
International, Inc. to perform environmental consulting services to 
complete the process of a formal application to DEP for the construction 
of a boardwalk along the north side of the causeway from the existing 
Shuckers docks westward along the seawall and along the seawall of 
Broadcast Key up to the termination point of WIOD property 
 

1) Commission Action 
 



4 

11. PLANNING & ZONING CONSENT AGENDA 

12. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A SPECIAL ELECTION 
TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 2016 FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE VOTERS, A BALLOT 
QUESTION TO EITHER AFFIRM OR REJECT THE 
REFERENDUM APPROVED AT THE SEPTEMBER 5, 2006 
SPECIAL ELECTION TO BURY THE UTILITY LINES 
THROUGHOUT THE VILLAGE; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE 
OF THE ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 
The proposed Resolution will authorize a Special Election to find out if 
the citizens of North Bay Village still has interest in burying the power 
lines throughout the Village, since a bond referendum was approved in 
2006 for the issuance of a $9,100,000 General Obligation Bond for the 
project. 
 

1) Commission Action 
 

B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 8(B) OF THE 
COMMISSION MEETING AND AGENDA PROCEDURES 
PERTAINING TO THE ORDER OF THE AGENDA; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY) 
 
The proposed Resolution will change the order of the agenda for the 
Commission Meetings to allow public participation early in the 
meetings. 
 

1) Commission Action 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS, INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND 
READING: 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE INSTALLATION OF 
A NEW BOATLIFT ON AN EXISTING DOCK AT 7601 EAST 
TREASURE DRIVE, PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING 
FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR 
VIOLATIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 
 

1) Commission Action 



5 

 
B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA APPROVING A ONE-YEAR EXTENSION 
OF THE SITE PLAN APPROVAL GRANTED TO 1755 NBV, 
LLC, PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 152.105(C)(9), 152.031(B)(1), 
152.031(C)(4), 152.032 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE 
OF ORDINANCES FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A 132 UNIT, 25 
STORY CONDOMINIUM HOTEL STRUCTURE WITH A 
PARKING GARAGE AT 1755 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, NORTH 
BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR GRANTING 
THE REQUEST; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL ONE-
YEAR EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION 
GRANTED TO 1755 NBV, LLC UNDER RESOLUTION 2014-35 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 132 
UNIT, 25 STORY CONDOMINIUM HOTEL STRUCTURE, AT 
1755 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, TO ALLOW UP TO TWENTY 
PERCENT OF THE DEVELOPMENT’S REQUIRED PARKING 
SPACES TO BE DESIGNATED SPECIFICALLY FOR 
COMPACT PARKING VEHICLES PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 
152.098 AND 152.042(E) OF THE VILLAGE CODE; PROVIDING 
FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN ADDITIONAL ONE 
YEAR EXTENSION OF A VARIANCE GRANTED TO 1755 
NBV, LLC UNDER  RESOLUTION 2014-34 IN CONNECTION 
WITH THE DEVELOPMENT OF A 132 UNIT, 25 STORY 
CONDOMINIUM HOTEL  STRUCTURE, AT 1755 KENNEDY 
CAUSEWAY, TO ALLOW LESS  THAN THE SIDE-YARD 
SETBACK AS REQUIRED BY SECTION 152.032(C)(2)(C) OF 
THE VILLAGE CODE; PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
REQUEST; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 
 

1) Commission Action 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 

 
 

C. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 36 OF THE 
VILLAGE CODE ENTITLED “PROCUREMENT 
REQUIREMENTS” BY AMENDING SECTION 36.25 TO 
PROHIBIT THE PROCUREMENT OF GOODS OR SERVICES 
FROM, OR OTHERWISE CONTRACT WITH, A BUSINESS 
THAT ENGAGES IN THE BOYCOTT OF A NATION OR 
COUNTRY, OR A BUSINESS THAT BLACKLISTS OR 
OTHERWISE REFUSES TO DEAL WITH A PERSON OR 
ENTITY BASED ON RACE, COLOR, RELIGION, GENDER, 
OR NATIONAL ORIGIN; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 
CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER RICHARD 
CHERVONY)- SECOND READING 
 
The proposed Ordinance will ensure that the Village will not be a party 
to discriminatory business practices and boycotts and that procurement 
contracts are protected from the practical and legal instability inherent 
in agreements with parties that support or engage in discriminatory 
practices. 
 

1) Commission Action 
 

D. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 132, SECTION 
132.07 OF THE VILLAGE CODE REQUIRING DISTRIBUTED 
HANDBILLS TO BE SECURED; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL, 
SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER 
ANDREANA JACKSON- SECOND READING) 
 
The proposed Ordinance will require handbills to be secured to the 
premises, to prevent them from being blown away and become litter. 
 

1) Commission Action 
 

14. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE TO 
JOIN THE MIAMI BEACH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE; 
AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO COMPLETE 
THE REQUIRED APPLICATION; NAMING A 
REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS; 
AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE 
MEMBERSHIP FEE FROM THE GENERAL FUND 
UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER 
EDDIE LIM) 
 
 



7 

 
The proposed Resolution will approve an application for membership to 
the Miami Beach Chamber of Commerce at an annual membership fee 
of $5,200 and selection of a member of the Commission to serve on the 
Board of Governors. 
 

1) Commission Action 
 

15. NEW BUSINESS 

A. APPOINTMENT TO ARTS, CULTURAL & SPECIAL EVENTS BOARD 

1. Commission Action 
 

B. APPROVAL OF PLANTING FOR NORTH BAY ISLAND ENTRANCE 
(COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY) 
 

1. Commission Action 
 

C. VOTING DELEGATE – FLORIDA LEAGUE OF CITIES 90TH ANNUAL 
CONFERENCE 
 

1. Commission Action 
 

D. DISCUSSION OF BTR APPROVAL FOR 1755 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY 
AND LACK OF ENFORCEMENT OF SAME.  (COMMISSIONER 
RICHARD CHERVONY) 

 
1. Commission Action 

 
E. LANDSCAPING WITH FLOWERS AROUND THE HARBOR ISLAND  

MONUMENT (VICE MAYOR JORGE GONZALEZ) 
 
1.) Commission Action 
 

16. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING – APRIL 12, 2016 
B. REGULAR COMMISSION MEETING - MAY 10, 2016 

 
1. Commission Action 

 
17. ADJOURNMENT 



North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 

TO  

THE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE VILLAGE COMMISSION 

JUNE 14, 2016 

1. SET TWO MEETING DATES:
A. FY ’17 Budget Commission Workshop : 

1. Suggest Tuesday, June 28th?
2. Selected Date:

B. Special Commission Meeting re:  FY ’17 Budget Process 
1. Adopt Tentative Millage Rate for TRIM Notice
2. Set Date, Time, & Place for both Public Budget Hearings on Proposed

Budget
3. Suggest either Tuesday, July 19th or Tuesday, July 26th?
4. Selected Date:

2. GRANTS UPDATE BY LAKEESHA MORRIS

______________________________________ 
Frank K. Rollason, Village Manager 

8

Page 1



8A

Page 2



Page 3



10A
10B

Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



RESOLUTION NO: ______________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE FIRST 
ADDENDUM TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT (“LEASE”) 
BETWEEN NORTH BAY VILLAGE (“VILLAGE”) AND 
CAUSEWAY TOWER LLC (“LESSOR”), FOR THE USE OF 
OFFICE SPACE LOCATED AT 1666 KENNEDY 
CAUSEWAY, SUITE 101; PROVIDING FOR EXECUTION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK 
ROLLASON) 

WHEREAS, on April 16, 2014, the Village entered into a lease agreement with Causeway 
Towers, LLC for  the use of approximately 4,240 square feet of office space, located at 1666 
Kennedy Causeway, Suite 101, which is being utilized as the  Commission Chambers, the Building 
Department, the Post Office, and Cashier Operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Village has exhausted the renewal options contained in the Lease 
Agreement, which is due to expire on June 30, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Lease Termination Date for an additonal two 
(2) years until June 30, 2018. The base rental rate shall be as follows: 

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017 $20.80/rsf (current base rate) $7,349.33 per month 
July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018 $21.63/rsf    $7,642.60 per month 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT DULY RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: Recitals.  The foregoing whereas clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 
true and the same are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2: Authorization of Village Manager.  The Village Manager is authorized to execute 
the agreement between North Bay Village and Causeway Tower, LLC attached 
hereto as Exhibit 1, for use of office space at 1666 Kennedy Causeway, #101.

Section 3: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon approval. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by _____________, who moved for its 
adoption.  This motion was seconded by ______________, and upon being put to a vote, 
the vote was as follows: 

10A

Page 7



FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 

Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps _________ 
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez _________ 
Commissioner Richard Chervony _________ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson _________ 
Commissioner Eddie Lim  _________ 

PASSED and ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2016. 

____________________________________ 
       MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
YVONNE P. HAMILTON, CMC 
Village Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

________________________________ 
Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 
 North Bay Village Resolution: Causeway Tower Lease Agreement-Suite 101, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, through  June 2018.

Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



RESOLUTION NO: ______________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE SECOND 
ADDENDUM TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT (“LEASE”) 
BETWEEN NORTH BAY VILLAGE (“VILLAGE”) AND 
CAUSEWAY TOWER LLC (“LESSOR”), FOR THE USE OF 
OFFICE SPACE LOCATED AT 1666 KENNEDY 
CAUSEWAY, SUITE 300; PROVIDING FOR EXECUTION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK 
ROLLASON) 

WHEREAS, on June 3, 2013, the Village entered into a lease agreement with Causeway 
Towers, LLC for  the use of approximately 9,455 square feet of office space, located at 1666 
Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300, which provides office and operational space for the Village’s 
administration and police operations; and 

WHEREAS, the Village has exhausted the renewal options contained in the Lease 
Agreement, which is due to expire on June 30, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, the parties wish to amend the Lease Termination Date for an additonal two 
(2) years until June 30, 2018 (with an option to renew for one additional year). The base rental rate 
shall be as follows: 

July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2017   $21.63/rsf (current base rate)    $17,042.64 per month 
July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018   $22.50/rsf       $17,728.13 per month 

WHEREAS, the one-year renewal option rate shall be negotiated by both parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT DULY RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1: Recitals.  The foregoing whereas clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 
true and the same are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2: Authorization of Village Manager.  The Village Manager is authorized to execute 
the Second Amendment to the Lease Agreement between North Bay Village and 
Causeway Tower, LLC attached hereto as Exhibit 1, for use of office space at 1666 
Kennedy Causeway, #300.                        

Section 3: Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon approval. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by _____________, who moved for its 
adoption.  This motion was seconded by ______________, and upon being put to a vote, 
the vote was as follows: 

10B

Page 11



 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps  _________   
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez  _________ 
Commissioner Richard Chervony _________  
Commissioner Andreana Jackson _________   
Commissioner Eddie Lim  _________  
 
 

   PASSED and ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2016. 
            

      ____________________________________ 
            MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS 

 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
YVONNE P. HAMILTON, CMC 
Village Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
________________________________ 
Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 
 
 North Bay Village Resolution: Causeway Tower Lease Agreement-Suite 300, 1666 Kennedy Causeway, through  June 2018. 

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



10C

Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



10D

Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



10E

Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A SPECIAL 
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 8, 
2016 FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE 
VOTERS, A BALLOT QUESTION TO EITHER AFFIRM OR 
REJECT THE REFERENDUM APPROVED AT THE 
SEPTEMBER 5, 2006 SPECIAL ELECTION TO BURY THE 
UTILITY LINES THROUGHOUT THE VILLAGE; 
PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF THE ELECTION; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
RELATED MATTERS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

WHEREAS, at a Special Election held on September 5, 2006, the electorates of 
North Bay Village voted for a capital improvement project to bury the utility lines 
throughout the City, financed by issuing a maximum of $9,100,000 in general obligation 
bonds, such bonds bearing interest not exceeding maximum legal rate, maturing within 30 
years, and being payable from ad valorem taxes levied on all taxable property in the City, 
with the understanding that the residents also may be responsible for paying for their own 
electrical upgrades and hookup;  by a vote of 232 for the project and 201 against the project; 
and 

WHEREAS, with the length of time that has passed and the financial impact of the 
program, the Village Commission finds that it is in the best interest of the residents of 
North Bay Village to decide whether or not to proceed with the project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND 
COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. 

In accordance with the provisions of the North Bay Village Charter and the general laws 
of the State of Florida, a Special Election is hereby called and directed to be held in North 
Bay Village, Florida, from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, November 8, 2016, for the 
purpose of submitting to the voters a ballot question to affirm or reject burying the utility 
lines throughout the Village. 

SECTION 2. 

That the appropriate and proper Miami-Dade County election officials shall conduct the 
said Special Election hereby called, with Miami-Dade County's certification of the results 
of said Special Election being accepted by the Village Commission.  The official returns 

12A

Page 81



for each precinct shall be furnished to the Village Clerk of North Bay Village as soon as 
the ballots from all precincts have been tabulated. 

SECTION 3. 

Said voting precincts in the Village of said Special Election shall be as established by the 
proper and appropriate Miami-Dade County Election Officials. All electors shall vote at 
the polling places and the voting precincts in which, the official registration books show 
that the said electors reside. A list of the voting precincts and the polling places therein 
(subject to change by the Supervisor of Elections of Miami-Dade County, in accordance 
with the laws of Florida) is included herewith.  

Precinct 016 
Pelican Harbor Marina 
1275 N.E. 79th Street 

Miami, FL  33138 

Precinct 017 
Treasure Island Elementary School 

7540 East Treasure Drive 
North Bay Village, FL 

SECTION 4. 

Registration of persons desiring to vote in the Special Election shall be in accordance with 
the general laws of the State of Florida governing voter registration. All questions 
concerning voter registration should be directed to the Miami-Dade County Elections 
Office, 2700 N.W. 87th Avenue, Miami, FL  33172, Telephone: (305) 499-8683. 

SECTION 5. 

Copies of the subject ballot questions shall be made available to the electors at the office 
of the Village Clerk from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. each day no later than thirty days prior to 
the date of said election.  

SECTION 6. 

Not less than thirty days' notice of said Special Election shall be given by publication in a 
newspaper of general circulation in North Bay Village, Miami-Dade County, Florida. Such 
publication shall be made in accordance with the provisions of Section 100.342, Florida 
Statutes. 

Page 82



SECTION 7. 

The notice of election shall be substantially in the following form: 

NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ELECTION 

PURSUANT TO RESOLUTION NO.  _____________ 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A SPECIAL ELECTION HAS BEEN CALLED 
BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AND WILL BE 
HELD IN SAID VILLAGE FROM 7:00 A.M. UNTIL 7:00 P.M. ON THE 8TH DAY OF 
NOVEMBER 2016, AT THE POLLING PLACES IN THE ELECTION PRECINCTS 
DESIGNATED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF MIAMI-DADE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA AS SET FORTH HEREIN, UNLESS OTHERWISE PROVIDED 
BY LAW, AT WHICH TIME THERE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE DULY 
REGISTERED AND QUALIFIED VOTERS OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE THE 
FOLLOWING QUESTION: 

PROPOSITION 1: 
BURYING UTILITY LINES THROUGHOUT THE 

VILLAGE 

Shall the Village proceed with the capital improvement 
project to bury utility lines throughout the Village, 
financed by issuing a maximum of $9,100,000 in general 
obligation bonds, such bonds bearing interest not 
exceeding maximum legal rate, maturing within 30 years, 
and being payable from ad valorem taxes levied on all 
taxable property in the Village, with the understanding that 
the residents also may be responsible for paying for their 
own electrical upgrades and hookup; as approved by the 
voters at the September 5, 2006 Special Election? 

YES _____              NO____ 

SECTION 8. 

The ballot questions shall appear in substantially the form set forth in the notice of election 
set forth in Section 7 above. 

Page 83



 
 
SECTION 9. 
 
Absentee voters participating in said Special Election shall be entitled to cast their ballots 
in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of Florida with respect to absentee 
voting. 
 
SECTION 10. 
 
That North Bay Village shall pay all expenses for conducting this Special Election and will 
pay to Miami-Dade County or directly to all persons or firms, upon receipt of invoice or 
statement approved by the Supervisor of Elections of Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
 
SECTION 11. 
 
The Village Clerk shall deliver a certified copy of this Resolution to the Supervisor of  
Elections of Miami-Dade County, Florida. 
 
SECTION 12.  Recitals 
 
The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference. 

SECTION 13.  Effectiveness of Ballot Question. 
 
That the ballot question submitted to the electors shall become effective only upon a 
majority vote.  

SECTION 14.  Severability. 

That the provisions of this Resolution are declared to be severable, and if any section, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this Resolution shall for any reason be held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, 
sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Resolution, but they shall remain in effect, it being 
the legislative intent that this Resolution shall stand, notwithstanding the invalidity of any 
part. 

SECTION 15.  Effective Date. That this Resolution shall become effective immediately 
upon adoption hereof. 

The foregoing Resolution was offered by ________, who moved for its adoption.  
This motion was seconded by __________, and upon being put to a vote, the vote 
was as follows: 
 
 
 

Page 84



FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 

Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps  ________ 
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez ________ 
Commissioner Richard Chervony ________ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson ________ 
Commissioner Eddie Lim  ________ 

   PASSED and ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2016. 

____________________________________ 
       MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________________ 
YVONNE P. HAMILTON, CMC 
VILLAGE CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL  
SUFFICIENCY FOR NORTH BAY VILLAGE 

________________________________________ 
ROBERT L. SWITKES & ASSOCIATRES, P.A. 
VILLAGE ATTORNEY 

 North Bay Village Resolution:  Special Use Exception One-Year Extension-1755 Kennedy Causeway Development. 

Page 85



Page 86



NORTH BAY VILLAGE 

UNDERGROUND WIRING PROJECT 

FACT SHEET 

I.  HISTORICAL 
a. Approved by the Voters on September 5, 2006 in a Special Election -232 in favor/201

against
i. Indebtedness not to exceed $9.1million in General Obligation Bonds

ii. Debt to be repaid by ad valorem taxes on all taxable property within the City
iii. Residents may also be responsible for their own electrical upgrades and hook-

up
b. Resolution No. 2007-08 approved by Commission on January 9, 2007

i. Resolution supporting the conversion of overhead wires to underground
ii. Encourages the PSC to implement all reasonable measures to encourage the

conversion of electric distribution facilities to underground facilities
c. Resolution No. 2009-34 approved by Commission on May 12, 2009

i. Authorized the expenditure of $33,493 to FPL for developing engineering cost
estimate for undergrounding of all FPL lines within the City

ii. FPL provided estimate of $3,773,000 for the conversion from overhead to
undergrounding of all their wires

II. PROJECT STATUS SYNOPSIS MEMO TO COMMISSION FROM MANAGER ON JUN 16, 2014
a. Copy attached as Exhibit A

III. ORIGINAL 2009 COST ESTIMATES
a. Copy attached as Exhibit B

IV. FINANCIAL IMPACTS
a. FPL Estimates

i. $4million +/- original estimate – includes 25% discount if ALL residents
participate

ii. $5million +/- at today’s dollars including technology upgrades over the past ten
years

iii. $6million +/- if ONE resident declines to participate – we lose the 25% discount
b. Atlantic Broad Band Estimate – Attached as Exhibit C

i. Phase 1 – Harbor Island - $241,994
ii. Phase 2 – North Bay Island and north side of Causeway between Harbor Island

entrance to west side of eastern-most flat bridge - $129,706
iii. Phase 3 – Causeway portion of Treasure Island and both sides of East Treasure

Drive down to South Treasure Drive to include quadrant along South Treasure to
Jewel Ave north to TIES - $141,870

iv. Phase 4 – Balance of Treasure Island from Jewel Avenue west - $139,271=4
v. Total Estimate:  $652,817

Page 87



c. AT&T Estimates – Attached as Exhibit D 
i. No total estimate provided in that they have not conducted an engineering 

study. 
ii. Per July 14, 2015 AT&T letter, they have offered to conduct the required 

engineering survey for a total up-front payment from the Village in the amount 
of $200,000 (dividing he Village into 4 quadrants at $50,000 per quadrant).   

iii. If the construction work does not go forward AT&T retains the entire $200,000. 
iv. If the construction work does go forward the $200,000 up-front dollars would 

be credited to the construction costs. 
v. In addition, the following stipulations were presented in the AT&T proposal – 

“The estimate developed by AT&T would not include the following costs, as we 
understand from our discussion that: 

1. Clearing of areas to which the cables would be relocated; 
2. Installation of support structures (conduits, hand holes, etc.) on private 

property to which the cables or service drops would be relocated for 
each customer or building.  For example, the homeowner or building 
owner is to provide a suitable conduit to replace the aerial service 
drop/cable; 

3. Acquiring any necessary easement or right-of-way to accommodate 
relocated facilities such as cables, terminals, and cabinets.” 

vi. Total Known Financial Impact Estimate – Between $6 and $7millon plus 
unknown cost of AT&T construction.   

V. NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACTS 
a. Harbor Island 

i. Public right-of-way locations for ground located boxes for FPL, AT&T, and 
Atlantic Broad Band. 

ii. Providing permanent utility easements for FPL, AT&T, and Atlantic Broad Band. 
b. North Bay Island 

i. Public right-of-way locations for ground located boxes for FPL, AT&T, and 
Atlantic Broad Band 

ii. Providing permanent utility easements for FPL, AT&T, and Atlantic Broad Band. 
c. Treasure island 

i. Locations on private property for FPL transformers at the front of property 
adjacent to sidewalk for every two single family homes.  For those locations that 
will not permit the transformer on private property, FPL will locate in the public 
right-of-way, but they will take one parking space. 

ii. Providing permanent utility easements for FPL, AT&T, and Atlantic Broad Band.   
VI. ADDITIONAL INDIVIDUAL HOMEOWNERS’ FINANCIAL IMPACTS 

a. Trenching for FPL conduits 
b. Trenching for AT&T conduits 
c. Trenching for ABB conduits 
d. Electrical Upgrades to House Electric if required by Building Dept. Electrical Inspector 

 

 

Page 88



EXHIBIT A

Page 89



ORIGINAL 2009 UNDERGROUND WIRING COST SYNOPSIS 

1. FPL:
a. Harbor Island – Phase I $  864,000 
b. North Bay Island – Phase II     609,000 
c. Treasure Island – Phase III  1,317,266 
d. Treasure Island – Phase IV     982,734 
e. Sub-Total $3,773,000 

2. AT&T:
a. Harbor Island – Phase I $   54,000 
b. North Bay Island – Phase II  1,261,000 
c. Treasure Island – Phase III  1,542,000 
d. Treasure island – Phase IV     832,000 
e. Sub-Total $3,689,000 

3. ABB:
a. Harbor Island – Phase I $   55,000 
b. North Bay Island – Phase II      78,000 
c. Treasure Island – Phase III    153,000 
d. Treasure Island – Phase IV    153,000 
e. Sub-Total $439,000 

4. GRAND TOTAL: $7,901,000 

ORIGINAL 2009 COST ESTIMATES
EXHIBIT B

Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



CURRENT ATLANTIC BROADBAND ESTIMATE
EXHIBIT C

Page 94



CURRENT ATT&T COST FOR PROVIDING ESTIMATE
EXHIBIT D

Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



12B

Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



13A

Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



RESOLUTION NO.  ______________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE INSTALLATION 
OF A NEW BOATLIFT ON AN EXISTING DOCK AT 7601 
EAST TREASURE DRIVE, PROVIDING FINDINGS, 
PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE REQUEST; 
PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR VIOLATIONS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED 
BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 WHEREAS, Kirk Lofgren, of Ocean Consulting, Inc., on behalf of Grand View Palace 

Yacht Club, Inc., has applied to North Bay Village for permission to install a new boatlift on an 

existing dock at the Grandview Palace Business Marina at 7601 East Treasure Drive, Treasure 

Island, North Bay Village, Florida, in the RM-70, High Density Multiple-Family Residential 

Zoning District; and 

 WHEREAS, Section 150.11(F) of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances requires all 

applications for construction of boatlifts to be approved by the Village Commission; and. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 150.11(F) of the Village Code, a public hearing 

by the Village Commission was noticed for Tuesday, June 14, 2016, at 7:30 p.m. at Village Hall, 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 101, North Bay Village, Florida 33141 and all interested parties 

have had the opportunity to address their comments to the Village Commission.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMISSION OF NORTH 

BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS:  

Section 1. Recitals.  
 

The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this Resolution by this reference.  
 
 
 

Page 124



Section 2. Findings. 
 

In accordance with Section 150.11(F) of the Village Code, the Village Commission, having 
considered the testimony and evidence in the record presented by all parties, finds that the boatlift 
is safe and environmentally compatible   
 
Section 3. Grant. 

 
In accordance with Section 150.11(F) of the North Bay Village Code of Ordinances, approval is 
granted to install a new boatlift at the marina at 7601 East Treasure Drive in accordance with the 
Site Plan submitted to the Village Clerk’s Office. 

 
Section 4. Conditions. 
 
Approval is granted with the condition that the following items are met prior to issuance of a 
Building Permit: 
 
1.  Verification of the 5 foot height restriction at the time of building permit issuance.  
2.  Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, but not limited to, 
 compliance with a State Programmatic General Permit as may be required by the U.S. 
 Army Corps of Engineers. All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained 
 before commencement of construction.  
3.  Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the Building Official prior 
 to commencement of construction.  
4.  Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section 152.110. Specifically, no new 
 development application shall be accepted and no building permit shall be issued for the 
 property until all application fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines 
 related to the property (including fees related to any previous development proposal 
 applications on the property), have been paid in full.  
5.  Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not in any way create 
 a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit from a state or federal agency, and 
 does not create liability on the part of the Village for issuance of a building permit if the 
 applicant fails to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state or 
 federal agency or undertakes action that results in a violation of federal or state law. 
 
Section 5. Appeal. 

 
In accordance with Section 152.104 of the Village Code, the Applicant, or any aggrieved property 
owner, may appeal the decision of the Village Commission by filing a Writ of Certiorari to the 
Circuit Court of Miami-Dade County, Florida, in accordance with the Florida Rules of Appellate 
Procedure. 
 
 
 
Section 6. Violation of Terms and Conditions. 

Page 125



 
Failure to adhere to the terms and conditions contained in this Resolution in Section 4 shall be 
considered a violation of this Resolution and persons found violating the conditions shall be 
subject to the penalties prescribed by the Village Code, including but not limited to the revocation 
of any of the approval(s) granted in this Resolution.   
 
The Applicant understands and acknowledges that it must comply with all other applicable 
requirements of the Village Code before it may commence construction or operation, and that the 
foregoing approval in this Resolution may be revoked by the Village at any time upon a 
determination that the Applicant is in non-compliance with the Village Code. 

 
Section 7. Effective Date.   
 
This Resolution shall become effective upon its adoption. 
 
The motion to adopt the foregoing Resolution was offered ____________, seconded by 
________________. 
 
FINAL VOTE AT ADOPTION: 
 
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps  __________     
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez  __________  
Commissioner Richard Chervony __________ 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson __________   
Commissioner Eddie Lim  __________  

 
    PASSED and ADOPTED this 14th day of June 2016. 

 
____________________________ 
MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS 

        
 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
YVONNE P. HAMILTON, CMC 
Village Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_______________________________ 
Robert L. Switkes & Associates, P.A. 
Village Attorney 
 
North Bay Village Resolution: Installation of Boatlift at 7601 E. Treasure Drive Marina 

Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



Page 155



Page 156



13B

Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



13C

Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



13D

Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



14A

Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



15A

Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



15C

Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



15D

Page 240



Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

O F F I C I A L  MINUTES 

REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 

VILLAGE HALL 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

TUESDAY, APRIL 12, 2016 

7:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 7:33 P.M. by Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was recited.

ROLL CALL

Commissioner Richard Chervony
Commissioner Eddie Lim
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez
Commissioner Andreana Jackson

Also Present:

Village Manager Frank K. Rollason
Deputy Village Manager/HR Director Jenice Rosado
Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes
Assistant Village Attorney David Acosta
Finance Director Bert Wrains
Chief Carlos Noriega
Village Planner Jim LaRue
Village Clerk Yvonne P. Hamilton
Deputy Village Clerk Jenorgen Guillen

16A

Page 252



 
 At this time, a moment of silence was observed in the passing of Judge 
 Alfonso Sepe. 

 
2. A.  PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS 
 
  1. LIEUTENANT BRIAN COLLINS 
 

Chief Carlos Noriega presented an award to Lieutenant Brian Collins for 
his efforts and professionalism displayed in his capacity as Acting Chief of 
Police. 

 
  2. SERGEANT KEVIN BEATY, OFFICER MANNY CASAIS, AND 
   OFFICER MARCEL ASCANIO 

 
Chief Carlos Noriega recognized these law enforcement personnel “for 
engaging a violent subject, who was being investigated for a plateau of 
crimes”, and they were presented with awards. They were also named as 
Co-Officers of the Month for January 2016 by Miami-Dade County 
Association of Police Chiefs.  
 

 B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 
  1.) HOUSE REPRESENTATIVE DAVID RICHARDSON 

    
House Representative David Richardson updated the Commission on 
legislative issues: $225,000 funding for the Village utility rehabilitation 
program; support for Village Boardwalk project; preemption of right of 
cities to regulate vacation rentals, and the overturn on the preemption on 
plastic bags. 
 

  Village Lobbyist Fausto Gomez discussed legislative issues: Approval of 
 $225,000 funding for the Village; Communication Service Tax; Local 
 Business Tax; Sea Level Rise, and Village Boardwalk. 

 
The Mayor recognized former members of the Village Commission 
Reinaldo Trujillo and Alvin Blake. 

 
 C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony requested that Items 15C, 12B, 12C, and 12D 

and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps requested that Item be heard after “Good & 
Welfare”.   

 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps moved to amend the agenda to hear Items 12B, 12C, 

12D, and 15C after “Good & Welfare”.  Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0. 

 
 
 

3. GOOD & WELFARE 

Page 253



 
 Former resident Reinaldo Trujillo, Fabiana Gomez, Village Yoga Instructor, Isaac 
 Acevedo, of 8000 East Drive, Doris O’Hare, of 1790 South Treasure Drive, Dr. Joshua 
 Furman, of 1590 South Treasure Drive, Sophia Emuriel, of 7601 East Treasure Drive, 
 Christopher Negrete, of 1884  Galleon Street, Anna  Bakst, of 1865 Kennedy Causeway, 
 Donna Veski, of 7516 Mutiny Avenue, Alvin Blake, of 7601 Coquina Drive, Esther 
 Razim, of 7810 Miami View Drive,  Ana Fonseca, of 7928 West Drive,  Mary Kramer, 
 of 7610 Coquina Drive, and Kevin Vericker, of 7520 Hispanola Avenue, all addressed 
 the Commission. 

  
15C. MIAMI BEACH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
 
 Commissioner Eddie Lim initiated discussion regarding the Village joining the Miami 
 Beach Chamber of Commerce.  The President and CEO, Jerry Libbin and Chairman, 
 Michael Goldberg discussed membership, fees, and benefits as a member of the 
 organization.  A Resolution  will be prepared for the May 10, 2016 Commission 
 Meeting for consideration of membership to the Miami Beach Chamber of Commerce at 
 an annual fee of 5,200. 
 
12B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING VILLAGE COMMISSION POLICY AND 
 PROCEDURES REGARDING PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS; 
 PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
 PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER 
 RICHARD CHERVONY) 
 
 The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony explained the purpose of the Resolution to obtain a 
 majority vote of the Commission for issuance of a “Key to the City” to any individual. 
 
 The Village Clerk read the Resolution in its entirety. 
 
 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments. 
 
 Mary Kramer, of 7610 Coquina Drive, Reinaldo Trujillo, Alvin Blake, of 7601 Coquina 
 Drive, Doris O’Hare, of 1790 South Treasure Drive, Isaac Acevedo, of 8000 East Drive, 
 Robert Alvarez, of 7529 Buccaneer Avenue, Tony Lima, Chief Executive Officer of 
 S.A.V.E., House Representative David Richardson, Kevin Vericker, of 7520 
 Hispanola Avenue, and Jose Pinto, of 1770 Kennedy Causeway, all addressed the 
 Commission. 
 
 The Mayor closed floor to public comments. 
 
 
 
 

Page 254



 The motion to approve the Resolution was adopted by a 4-1 roll call vote.   The vote was 
 as follows:  Commissioner Eddie Lim, Commissioner Richard Chervony,  Commissioner 
 Andreana Jackson, and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez all voted Yes.  Mayor  Connie Leon-
 Kreps voted No. 
 
12C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING THAT NO VILLAGE COMMISSION MEMBER 
 MAY REPRESENT THE VILLAGE WITHOUT PROPER AUTHORIZATION; 
 AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE (INTRODUCED BY VICE MAYOR 
 JORGE GONZALEZ) 
 
 The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a presentation on the item, including an explanation of 
 the Resolution to require a majority vote of the Commission, when a member of the 
 Commission wishes to represent the Village in an official capacity. 
 
 The Mayor stated for the record that every time that she would come up to the manager 
 with an issue, he would stand in front of her in an aggressive, hostile manner and tell her 
 to fire him, if she does not like it.  She stated that she has issues, and the issue with the 
 note cards was the last straw, “the one that broke the camel’s back”.  She further stated 
 that she was to give a proclamation to Dr. Vanis White with a childhood cancer 
 organization, and at 5:00 p.m. in the afternoon, his assistant told her that she did not 
 have the proclamation; that she did not know anything about it, and it was the fault 
 of the Clerk.  She added that according to the manager’s assistant, the fault was always 
 that of  the Clerk or Ana Deleon.  
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps further stated for the record that she was leaving the dais 
 because the Vice Mayor was bringing stuff against her, when there were important 
 things to be discussed, and he was taking time on other things.   She also stated that 
 she needed to obtain her own legal counsel. 
 
 The Mayor left the dais, and Vice Mayor Gonzalez presided over the meeting in her 
 absence. 
 
 The Village Clerk read the Resolution in its entirety. 
 
 The Vice Mayor opened the floor to public comments. 
 
 Gary Aboff, of 7501 East Treasure Drive, addressed the Commission. 
 
 The Vice Mayor closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 255



 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the Resolution.  Vice Mayor 
 Jorge Gonzalez seconded the motion, which failed by a 2-2 vote.  The vote was as 
 follows:  Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez and Commissioner Richard Chervony voted Yes.  
 Commissioner Eddie Lim and Commissioner Andreana Jackson voted No.  The Mayor 
 was absent from the dais. 
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps resumed her place on the dais and stated for the record that 
 she has to obtain her own legal counsel, since the Village Attorney has a conflict. 
 
12D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, CENSURING AND DENOUNCING MAYOR CONNIE LEON-
 KREPS FOR HER VIOLATION OF DECORUM AND CONDUCT 
 UNBECOMING A MEMBER OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
 COMMISSION, BY MAKING FALSE AND UNSUPPORTED 
 ACCUSATIONS OF �COLLUSI     
 HER FELLOW COMMISSION MEMBERS AT THE COMMISSION 
 MEETING OF MARCH 8, 2016; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY) 

 
The Village Clerk read the Resolution in its entirety. 
 

 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps made a motion to defer item 12D until she can obtain legal 
representation.  The motion failed for lack of a second. 

 
 The Mayor left the dais, and Vice Mayor Gonzalez presided over the meeting in her 
 absence. 

 
Commissioner Richard Chervony presented the item. 
 
The Vice Mayor opened the floor to public comments 
 

 Mary Kramer, of 7610 Coquina Drive, Reinaldo Trujillo, and Kevin Vericker, of 7520 
Hispanola Avenue addressed the Commission. 
 
The Vice Mayor closed the floor to public comments. 
 

 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the Resolution.  Commissioner 
Andreana Jackson seconded the motion, which was adopted by a 3-1 roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Commissioner Richard Chervony, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, 
and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez all voting Yes.  Commissioner Eddie Lim voted No.  
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps was absent from the dais. 
 

4. BOARD REPORTS 
 
 A. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
 
  A report was not provided. 
 
 
 
 

Page 256



 B. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
 
  The Chair provided a written report to the Commission. 
 
 C. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 
  A report was not provided. 
 
 D. YOUTH & EDUCATION SERVICES BOARD 
  
  A report was not provided. 
 
5. PUBLIC SAFETY DISCUSSION 
 
 Chief Carlos Noriega discussed public safety issues. 
 
6. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Commissioner Eddie Lim, 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony, and Commissioner Andreana Jackson all provided 
 verbal reports 
 
7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 The Village Attorney gave an oral report. 
 
8. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 A. Grant Writer’s Report 
 
  A written report was included in the agenda package. 
 

 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to hold a Public Workshop 
 regarding Underground Wiring Utilities.  Commissioner Eddie Lim seconded the 
 motion, which carried 5-0 on a roll call vote. 

 
9. FINANCE REPORT 
 
 The Finance Director Bert Wrains gave the finance report. 
 
10.      CONSENT AGENDA: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are 

not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be enacted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 
 
 

A.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, ACCEPTING A FISCAL YEAR 2016 EDWARD BYRNE 
MEMORIAL JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG) –DIRECT AWARD 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,096; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 

Page 257



MANAGER TO ALLOCATE UP TO $678 IN MATCH FUNDING FROM 
THE STATE FORFEITURE FUND; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 
MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE GRANT DOCUMENTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON)  

 
  B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION NORTH BAY VILLAGE,  

 FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH TOSHIBA 
 BUSINESS  SOLUTIONS FOR THE LEASE OF A DIGITAL 
 COPIER MACHINE FOR POLICE DISPATCH, PURSUANT TO 
 SECTION 36.25(J) OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF 
 ORDINANCES; AUTHORIZING VILLAGE OFFICIALS TO TAKE 
 ALL NECESSARY STEPS TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS OF THE 
 AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO 
 EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON) 

   
 C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE TRANSFER OF EXPENDITURES FROM 
 THE FEDERAL FORFEITURE FUND TO THE GENERAL FUND; 
 APPROVING THE APPROPRIATION OF GENERAL FUND 
 UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K.  ROLLASON) 

 
 D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING THE PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF 
 EQUIPMENT FOR THREE (3) NEW POLICE VEHICLES FROM DANA 
 SAFETY SUPPLY, INC., UNDER THE PIGGY BACK PURCHASE  
 PROVISION, AS PER SECTION 36.25(J) OF THE VILLAGE’S 
 PURCHASING ORDINANCE; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 E. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING A JOINT USE AGREEMENT  
 WITH MIAMI-DADE COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD FOR 
 IMPROVEMENTS, MAINTENANCE, AND USE OF THE 
 BASKETBALL COURT LOCATED AT TREASURE ISLAND 
 ELEMENTARY SCHOOL; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 
 MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING 
 FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY MAYOR CONNIE 
 LEON-KREPS) 

 
 
 
         

 F. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE PUBLIC WELFARE, 
 AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER, ON BEHALF OF THE 

Page 258



 NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT, TO ENTER INTO 
 A LAW ENFORCEMENT MUTUAL AID AGREEMENT WITH THE 
 TOWN OF MEDLEY; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 G. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING A PAYMENT PLAN WITH MIAMI-DADE 
 COUNTY, FLORIDA, FOR THE PURCHASE OF A POLICE RADIO 
 SYSTEM; APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF $12,106.94 FROM THE 
 GENERAL FUND UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE FOR THE FIRST 
 ANNUAL PAYMENT; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 H. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

 FLORIDA, APPROVING A COLOR FOR PAINTING THE POLICE 
 DISPATCH CENTER AT 1841 GALLEON STREET; SETTING AN 
 EFFECTIVE DATE.  (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
 ROLLASON)  
 
I. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, ACCEPTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF 
THE VILLAGE MANAGER, AND AWARDING BID NO. NBV 2015-
001 FOR THE SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM 
TO INSITUFORM TECHNOLOGIES, LLC; AUTHORIZING THE 
VILLAGE MANAGER TO ENTER INTO THE RELATED 
CONTRACTS PURSUANT TO THE SCOPE OF SERVICES 
OUTLINED IN THE BID; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
J. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING THE EXPENDITURE OF UP TO $35,000 FROM 
THE GENERAL FUND UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE FOR THE 
PURCHASE OF TWO NEW MERCURY VERADO ENGINES FOR THE 
POLICE BOAT, FROM CENTRAL FLORIDA YAMAHA, UNDER THE 
PIGGYBACK PURCHASE PROVISION, PURSUANT TO SECTION 
36.25(J) OF THE VILLAGE CODE; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
K. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING THE APPLICATION FEE FOR VACATION 
 RENTAL LICENSES WITHIN NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 
 VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE GRAPHIC DESIGN FOR 

Page 259



 THE TEMPORARY FENCE TO BE LOCATED AT 7918 WEST 
 DRIVE PROPERTY; AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 
 

Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda 
 items.  Commissioner Richard Chervony seconded the motion, which was 
 adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote. The vote was as follows:  Mayor 
 Connie Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, Commissioner 
 Richard Chervony, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, and Vice Mayor 
 Jorge Gonzalez all voting Yes. 

 
11. PLANNING & ZONING CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 NO ITEMS. 
 
12. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 

  
A. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 36 OF THE VILLAGE CODE 
 ENTITLED “PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS” BY AMENDING 
 SECTION 36.25 TO PROHIBIT THE PROCUREMENT OF GOODS OR 
 SERVICES FROM, OR OTHERWISE CONTRACT WITH, A BUSINESS 
 THAT ENGAGES IN THE BOYCOTT OF A NATION OR COUNTRY, 
 OR A BUSINESS THAT BLACKLISTS OR OTHERWISE REFUSES TO 
 DEAL WITH A PERSON OR ENTITY BASED ON RACE, COLOR, 
 RELIGION, GENDER, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN; PROVIDING FOR 
 CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE 
 DATE.  (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY) 
 
 The Village Clerk read the Ordinance by title. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to defer the item to the next 
 Commission Meeting.  Commissioner Eddie Lim seconded the motion, and all 
 voted in favor. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS, INCLUDING ORDINANCES FOR SECOND 
 READING: 
 

A. AN ORDINANCE OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, AMENDING 
 SUPPLEMENTAL REGULATIONS OF CHAPTER 152 – ZONING, OF 

Page 260



 THE  CODE OF ORDINANCES OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE; 
 CREATING SECTION 152.112 ENTITLED “VACATION RENTAL 
 LICENSE PROGRAM” TO INCLUDE BUT NOT BE LIMITED TO 
 PROVIDING FOR PURPOSE AND INTENT; PROVIDING FOR A 
 VACATION RENTAL LICENSE; PROVIDING FOR A VACATION 
 RENTAL REPRESENTATIVE; PROVIDING FOR LOCAL PHONE 
 SERVICE REQUIREMENT; PROVIDING FOR PARKING 
 STANDARDS; PROVIDING FOR SOLID WASTE HANDLING AND 
 CONTAINMENT; PROVIDING FOR THE POSTING OF VACATION 
 RENTAL INFORMATION; PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES AND 
 ENFORCEMENT;  PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING 
 FOR CONFLICTS;  PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 (INTRODUCED BY MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS – SECOND 
 READING- PUBLIC HEARING) 
 
 The Village Clerk read the Ordinance by title. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the Ordinance, and 

Commissioner Eddie Lim seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie 
Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all 
voted Yes. 

 
B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA, APPROVING A SPECIAL USE EXCEPTION PURSUANT TO 
 SECTION 152.098 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE CODE OF 
 ORDINANCES TO OPERATE A LIMITED COMMERCIAL PARKING 
 LOT AT 1335 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
 FLORIDA; PROVIDING FINDINGS, PROVIDING FOR GRANTING THE 
 REQUEST; PROVIDING FOR CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
 APPEAL; PROVIDING FOR TEMPORARY WAIVER; AND PROVIDING 
 FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
 FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 
 
 
 

 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to extend the meeting for 30 minutes.  
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion, and all voted in favor. 

 
 The Village Manager Frank K. Rollason and the Village Attorney Robert L. 
 Switkes, both, made brief presentations on the item. 

 

Page 261



 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 

 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 
 closed the floor to public comments. 

 
 The motion was adopted by a 4-1 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Mayor 
 Connie Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, 
 and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez all voting Yes.  Commissioner Richard Chervony 
 voted No. 

 
16. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
 A. Special Commission Meeting – March 22, 2016 
 B. Regular Commission Meeting – March 8, 2016 
 C. Special Commission Meeting –  February 23, 2016 
 

 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the Minutes as 
 submitted.  Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez seconded the motion, which was adopted 
 by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Commissioner Andreana 
 Jackson, Vice Mayor  Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Commissioner 
 Eddie Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all voting Yes. 

 
  Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to extend the Meeting for 30 minutes.  
  Commissioner Eddie Lim seconded the motion, and all voted in favor. 
   
 C. PUBLIC INPUT FOR DRAFT STRATEGIC PLAN TO REVITALIZE AND 
  EXPAND BUSINESSES IN THE VILLAGE. (PUBLIC HEARING)  
   
  The Village Clerk read the item into the record. 
 

 The Village Planner Jim LaRue addressed the Commission and explained that the 
 item was placed on the agenda for the purpose of obtaining public input.  The 
 Strategic Plan was also discussed at a previous meeting of the Commission, and 
 the Business Development Advisory Board reviewed the Plan and provided input. 

 
  Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps opened the Public Hearing. 
 
  There being no speakers, she closed the Public Hearing. 
 
 
 
 
 
14. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
 There was no unfinished business. 
 
15. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Page 262



 A. Exercise Equipment (Pull Up and Dip Station) at Dr. Paul Vogel Community 
  Park (Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps) 
 
  No action was taken on this item. 
 

B. Educational Compact with Miami-Dade County  
 Public School (Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps) 
 

  No action was taken on this item. 
 
D. Instruction to the Village Manager to Research the Feasibility of Creating a  
 “Destination District” along the North Side of Kennedy Causeway on 
 Treasure Island (Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez) 

 
 During his Commission’s Report, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez requested, without  
 objection, that the Village Manager draft a Resolution to create a Destination 
 District for consideration at the May 10th Commission Meeting. 

 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting adjourned at 12:13 a.m. 

 
Prepared by:  Yvonne P. Hamilton 
                      Village Clerk 
 
Adopted by North Bay Village on 
 
this 14th day of June 2016. 
 
_________________________________ 
Connie Leon-Kreps, Mayor 

 
 

(Note:  The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting.  A copy of the audio recording is available at the Village Clerk’s 
Office until the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.) 

 

Page 263



North Bay Village 
Administrative Offices 

1666 Kennedy Causeway, Suite 300   North Bay Village, FL  33141 

Tel: (305) 756-7171 Fax: (305) 756-7722 Website: www.nbvillage.com 

O F F I C I A L  MINUTES 

REGULAR VILLAGE COMMISSION MEETING 

VILLAGE HALL 
1666 KENNEDY CAUSEWAY, #101 
NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FL  33141 

TUESDAY, MAY 10, 2016 

7:30 P.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 7:35 P.M. by Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Al Coletta, of 7904 West Drive, led the Pledge of Allegiance.

ROLL CALL

Commissioner Richard Chervony
Commissioner Eddie Lim
Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps
Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez
Commissioner Andreana Jackson

Also Present:

Village Manager Frank K. Rollason
Deputy Village Manager/HR Director Jenice Rosado
Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes
Finance Director Bert Wrains
Chief Carlos Noriega
Village Planner Jim LaRue
Village Clerk Yvonne P. Hamilton

A Moment of Silence was observed in the passing of Resident Peter Sherman.

16B

Page 264



2. A.  PROCLAMATIONS AND AWARDS 
 
  1. GFOA’S DISTINGUISHED BUDGET PREPARATION AWARD TO 
   FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 
  2. GFOA’S EXCELLENCE IN FINANCIAL REPORTING- 
   COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR) 
   FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
 

Anna C. Otiniano, Finance Director, with the City of Plantation  presented 
the Budget Award and the Certificate of Excellence in Reporting Award 
for the CAFR to the  Finance Director and his Staff. 

 
 B. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
 

 1. KEEFE, MCCULLOUGH & CO., LLP-FY 2016 ANNUAL  
  AUDIT 

 
Cindy Calvert, Partner with Keefe, McCullough, LLP, presented the audit 
report. 

 
 C. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS 

 
 Commissioner Eddie Lim requested that Item 10C, Commissioner Richard 

Chervony requested  Item 10D, and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps requested that 
Item 10A all be removed to be discussed separately from the Consent Agenda.  The 
Mayor also withdrew Item 12C as the sponsor.  Commissioner Richard Chervony 
made a motion to approve the agenda as amended, and Commissioner Andreana 
Jackson seconded the motion, which was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote. 

 
3. GOOD & WELFARE 
  
 Ruth Prado, of 6900 Bay Drive, Miami Beach, Florida, Al Coletta, of 7904 West Drive, 
 and Mary Kramer, of 7610 Coquina Drive, addressed the Commission. 
 
4. BOARD REPORTS 
 
 A. BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
 
  A report was not provided. 
 
 B. COMMUNITY ENHANCEMENT BOARD 
 

 A written report from the March 17, 2016 meeting was included in the agenda 
 package. 

 
 
 
 
 C. PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 
 

Page 265



 A written report from the April 5, 2016 meeting was included in the agenda 
 package. 

 
 D. YOUTH & EDUCATION SERVICES BOARD 
 
  A report was not provided. 
 
5. PUBLIC SAFETY DISCUSSION 
 
 Chief Carlos Noriega reported on public safety issues and other police matters.  He 
 announced a Memorial Service for May 18, 2016 at 11:00 a.m. at Village Hall. 
 
6. COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS 
 
 Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Commissioner Andreana 
 Jackson, Commissioner Richard Chervony and Commissioner Eddie Lim all gave verbal 
 reports. 
  
7. VILLAGE ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 Village Attorney Robert L. Switkes gave a verbal report. 
 
8. VILLAGE MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 Village Manager Frank K. Rollason discussed his written report that was included in the 
 agenda package and responded to questions from the Commission.  It was the consensus 
 of the Commission that the Village 70th Anniversary Year Book be proposed in the 
 upcoming budget.  The Village Manager will bring back prices to the Commission at its 
 next meeting for painting the bike lanes green.  
 
 A. Grant Writer’s Report 
 

 The Village Grant Writer Lakeesha Morris reported on the status of grants for the 
 Village. 

 
9. FINANCE REPORT 
 
 The Finance Director Bert Wrains discussed the financial status of the Village as of April 
 30, 2016. 
 
10.      CONSENT AGENDA: (Matters on the Consent Agenda are self-explanatory and are 

not expected to require discussion or review. Items will be adopted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired by any member of the Commission, that item must be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately.) 

 
 
 
 

B.  A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING RENEWAL PRICING FOR PUBLISHING THE 
VILLAGE’S PUBLIC NOTICES IN THE MIAMI HERALD NEIGHBORS 

Page 266



SECTION; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
ANY REQUIRED AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 
OFFICIALS TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE 
AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF BUDGETED 
FUNDS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED 
BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

  
  Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda 

Item 10B.  Commissioner Eddie Lim seconded the motion, which was adopted by 
a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Commissioner Andreana Jackson, 
Vice  Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie 
Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all voting Yes. 

 
  The following items were removed from the Consent Agenda: 

 
C. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH THE SCHOOL 
BOARD OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA AND FUNDING OF THE 
INTERNATIONAL BACCALAUREATE PROGRAM AT TREASURE 
ISLAND ELEMENTARY SCHOOL FOR THE SCHOOL YEARS 2016-
2017, 2017-2018, AND 2018-2019; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 
MANAGER TO PROVIDE WRITTEN NOTIFICATION OF THE 
VILLAGE’S INTENT TO FUND THE PROGRAM FOR THE 2016-2017 
SCHOOL YEAR IN THE AMOUNT OF $130,000; AUTHORIZING THE 
VILLAGE MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
   The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 

  Sally J. Alayon, Miami-Dade County School Board and Treasure Island 
Elementary School Principal Dalia Villar addressed the Commission regarding the 
IB Program. 

 
  Discussion took place on the effect of approving an agreement with the School 

Board for the 2016-2017 Year, rather than the three years, until information is 
provided to measure the effectiveness of the IB Program. 

 
  The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

closed the floor to public comments. 
 
  Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to accept a one-year contract until 

questions are answered to consider a three-year extension.  The motion died for 
lack of a second. 

 
 
 
  Commissioner Eddie Lim made a motion to approve the Resolution as submitted 

to fund the program for three years.  Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps seconded the 
motion, which was adopted by a 3-2 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice 
Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 

Page 267



all voted Yes.  Commissioner Andreana Jackson and Commissioner Richard 
Cherovny voted No.   

 
A.    A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE EXTENSION OF AN AGREEMENT 
WITH GOLD COAST TRANSIT FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF BUS 
SHELTERS AT PUBLIC TRANSIT STOPS WITHIN THE VILLAGE, 
UNDER SECTION 36.25(L) OF THE VILLAGE CODE; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. 
ROLLASON) 

 
   The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 

  Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 
Commissioner Richard Chervony seconded the motion. 

 
  The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

closed the floor to public comments. 
 
   Alison Oliver addressed the Commission on behalf of Gold Coast Transit. 
 

  The vote on the motion to approve the Resolution was adopted by a 4-1 roll call 
vote.  The vote was as follows:  Commissioner Richard Chervony, Commissioner 
Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, and Commissioner Richard 
Chervony all voting Yes.  Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps voted No. 

 
  Gold Coast Transit will re-adjust the garbage containers to be closer inside the     

shelters. 
    
D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE TO JOIN THE MIAMI 
BEACH CHAMBER OF COMMERCE; AUTHORIZING THE VILLAGE 
MANAGER TO COMPLETE THE REQUIRED APPLICATION; NAMING 
A REPRESENTATIVE TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS; 
AUTHORIZING EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS FOR THE MEMBERSHIP 
FEE FROM THE GENERAL FUND UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE; 
AND SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
COMMISSIONER EDDIE LIM) 

 
  The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
  The item was deferred to obtain more information on membership benefits. 
 
 
 
 
 

13C. AN APPLICATION BY JOSEPH KOCIUBA TO CONSTRUCT A NEW 
WOODEN DOCK AT 1720 SOUTH TREASURE DRIVE, TREASURE 
ISLAND, NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA, PURSUANT TO SECTION 
150.11(F) OF THE VILLAGE CODE AND THE APPROVAL OF A 

Page 268



WAIVER PURSUANT TO SECTION 150.11(A) AND 150.11(G) TO 
CONSTRUCT A DOCK STRUCTURE EXTENDING FARTHER THAN 25 
FEET FROM THE SHORELINE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER 
FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
  The Village Clerk read the request into the record. 
 

 The Village Planner, Jim LaRue, of LaRue Planning & Management Services, 
 presented the Staff Report recommending approval of the request with the 
 following conditions being met prior to the issuance of a Building Permit, since 
 the plans were consistent with the regulations. 

 1. Verification of the 5 foot height restriction at the time of building permit  
  issuance. 
 

2. Compliance with all state, federal, and environmental laws including, 
 but not limited to, compliance with a State Programmatic General 
 Permit as may be required by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 
 All applicable state and federal permits must be obtained before 
 commencement of construction. 

 
  3. Building permits and related approvals must be obtained from the  
  Building Official prior to commencement of construction. 
 
  4. Cost recovery charges must be paid pursuant to Section152.110.   
   Specifically,  no new development application shall be accepted and  
   no building permit shall be issued for the property until all application 
   fees, cost recovery deposits and outstanding fees and fines related to  
   the property (including fees related to any previous development  
   proposal applications on the property), have been paid in full. 
  
  5. Authorization or issuance of a building permit by the Village does not  
   in any  way create a right on the part of the applicant to obtain a permit  
   from a state or federal agency, and does not create liability on the part 
   of the Village for issuance of a building permit if the applicant fails  
   to obtain requisite approvals or fulfill the obligations imposed by a state  
   or federal agency or undertakes action that results in a violation of federal 
   or state law. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the request with the 
 conditions set forth above, and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez seconded the motion. 
 
 The Village Attorney swore in those individuals who indicated that they would 
 provide testimony. 

 
 
 
  The Mayor opened the Public Hearing. 
 
  The applicant Joseph Kociuba accepted the conditions of approval as outlined  

   herein. 
 

Page 269



  The Mayor closed the Public Hearing. 
 

 The motion was adopted by a 4-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie 
Leon- Kreps, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all voting Yes.  Commissioner 
Eddie Lim was absent from the dais. 

 
11. PLANNING & ZONING CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 NO ITEMS. 
 
12. ORDINANCES FOR FIRST READING AND RESOLUTIONS 

 
A. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 36 OF THE VILLAGE CODE 
ENTITLED “PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS” BY AMENDING 
SECTION 36.25 TO PROHIBIT THE PROCUREMENT OF GOODS OR 
SERVICES FROM, OR OTHERWISE CONTRACT WITH, A BUSINESS 
THAT ENGAGES IN THE BOYCOTT OF A NATION OR COUNTRY, 
OR A BUSINESS THAT BLACKLISTS OR OTHERWISE REFUSES TO 
DEAL WITH A PERSON OR ENTITY BASED ON RACE, COLOR, 
RELIGION, GENDER, OR NATIONAL ORIGIN; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICT, CODIFICATION, SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. (INTRODUCED BY COMMISSIONER RICHARD CHERVONY) 

 
 The Village Clerk read the Ordinance by title. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony explained the purpose of the ordinance. 
 
 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez suggested that “sexual orientation” be included in the 

class of persons outlined in the ordinance. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the ordinance on first 

reading as amended, and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie 
Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all 
voting Yes. 

 
 
 
 
 
B. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 132, SECTION 132.07 OF THE 
VILLAGE CODE REQUIRING DISTRIBUTED HANDBILLS TO BE 
SECURED; PROVIDING FOR REPEAL, SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION 

Page 270



IN THE CODE AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
COMMISSIONER ANDREANA JACKSON) 
 

 The Village Clerk read the ordinance by title. 
  
 Commissioner Jackson made a brief presentation on the item. 
 
 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the ordinance on first 

reading, and Commissioner Richard Chervony seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Mayor 

Connie Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, Commissioner Richard Chervony, 
Commissioner Andreana Jackson, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all voting 
Yes. 

  
C. AN ORDINANCE OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 70 OF THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE 
CODE OF ORDINANCES ENTITLED “TRAFFIC AND PARKING 
REGULATIONS”; BY CREATING SECTION 70.06 REGARDING 
PARKING REGULATIONS FOR STREET SWEEPING; PROVIDING FOR 
REPEAL, SEVERABILITY, INCLUSION IN THE CODE AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY MAYOR CONNIE LEON-KREPS) 

 
 The Mayor withdrew Item 12C as the sponsor.  
  
D. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY 

VILLAGE, FLORIDA, APPROVING A BOARDWALK DISTRICT 
ON THE NORTH SIDE OF THE 79TH STREET CAUSEWAY IN THE 
VILLAGE; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
VICE MAYOR JORGE GONZALEZ) 

 
 The Village Clerk read the Resolution by title. 
 
 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the Resolution, and 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the Public Hearing.  There being no speakers, she closed the 
 Public Hearing. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
13A. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING AN EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE 
EXCEPTION GRANTED UNDER RESOLUTION NO. 2015-27 TO BRICK 
VILLAGE 79, LLC FOR DEVELOPMENT OF A MIXED-USE 

Page 271



RESIDENTIAL AND COMMERCIAL STRUCTURE IN THE CG 
(GENERAL COMMERCIAL) ZONING DISTRICT, AT 1601 KENNEDY 
CAUSEWAY; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY 
VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
13B. A RESOLUTION OF THE COMMISSION OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, 

FLORIDA, APPROVING A ONE-YEAR EXTENSION OF A SPECIAL USE 
EXCEPTION GRANTED TO BRICK  VILLAGE 79, LLC UNDER 
RESOLUTION 2015-28 IN CONNECTION WITH THE DEVELOPMENT 
OF A 75 UNIT, 22  STORY MIXED-USE STRUCTURE AT 1601 KENNEDY 
CAUSEWAY, TO ALLOW UP TO TWENTY PERCENT OF THE 
DEVELOPMENT’S REQUIRED PARKING SPACES TO BE 
DESIGNATED SPECIFICALLY FOR COMPACT PARKING VEHICLES, 
PURSUANT TO SECTIONS 152.098 AND 152.042(E) OF THE VILLAGE 
CODE; SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE 
MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) 

 
 The Village Clerk read the Resolutions into the Record (Items 13A and 13B). 
 
 The Village Planner Jim LaRue, of LaRue Planning & Management Services, 

presented the Staff Report recommending approval. 
 
 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to approve the Resolutions, and  Mayor 

Connie Leon-Kreps seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the Public Hearing.  There being no speakers, she closed the 

Public Hearing. 
 
 The vote was adopted by a 4-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Mayor 

Connie Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, 
and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez all voting Yes.  Commissioner Richard Chervony 
was absent from the dais. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS: 
 
D. AN ORDINANCE OF NORTH BAY VILLAGE, FLORIDA 

AMENDING  THE NORTH BAY VILLAGE 1987 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AS AMENDED BY REVISING THE 
INTRODUCTION, POPULATION ESTIMATES AND 
PROJECTIONS, FUTURE LAND USE, TRANSPORTATION, 
HOUSING, SANITARY SEWER, SOLID WASTE, DRAINAGE AND 

Page 272



AQUIFER RECHARGE, COASTAL MANAGEMENT, 
CONSERVATION, RECREATION AND OPEN SPACE, 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL COORDINATION, CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENTS, AND PUBLIC SCHOOL FACILITIES 
ELEMENTS; AMENDMENTS TO THE FUTURE LAND USE MAP; 
COORDINATING THE VILLAGE’S  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
WITH THE SOUTH FLORIDA WATER MANAGEMENT 
DISTRICT’S  LOWER EAST COAST WATER SUPPLY PLAN 
UPDATE, AS MANDATED BY FLORIDA STATUTES 
163.3177(6)(C)(3); IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANDATES SET 
FORTH IN CHAPTER 163, FLORIDA STATUTES; AUTHORIZING 
TRANSMITTAL OF THESE AMENDMENTS TO THE SOUTH 
FLORIDA REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL, STATE LAND 
PLANNING AGENCY, AND OTHER APPLICABLE AGENCIES 
FOR REVIEW AND COMMENT AS REQUIRED BY FLORIDA 
STATUTES; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
(INTRODUCED BY VILLAGE MANAGER FRANK K. ROLLASON) -  
(FINAL ADOPTION) 

 
 The Village Clerk read the ordinance by title. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the ordinance, and 
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion. 
 
 The Village Planner Jim LaRue made a brief presentation on the item explaining 
 that comments from the Department of Economic Opportunity and the Water 
 Management District were addressed. Miami-Dade Planning Department also 
 requested that their new name be included in the Plan. He  pointed out that, there 
 is also a change to the Plan to allow mixed-use developments on both sides of the 
 79th Street Causeway. 
 
 The Mayor opened the Public Hearing.  There being no speakers, she closed the 
 Public Hearing. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie 
 Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all 
 voting Yes. 

  
 
 
 
 

E. PUBLIC INPUT FOR STRATEGIC PLAN TO REVITALIZE AND 
EXPAND BUSINESSES IN THE VILLAGE AND REVIEW THE 
STRATEGIC PLAN 5YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS SCHEDULE. 

 
 The Village Clerk read the request into the record.  
 
 The Village Planner, Jim LaRue, presented the item to the Commission. He 

discussed that the Strategic Plan (Plan) was reviewed by the Commission several 

Page 273



times and separate actions were combined based on those discussions, such as the 
Storm Water and Water and Sewer Improvements.  The 5Year Capital 
Improvements Schedule was added as part of the Plan.  Input was also received 
from the Finance Director, and new figures were added for the Water Transmission 
and Distribution Project.  Mr. LaRue also informed the Commission that the 
Boardwalk Project will now be included as a capital improvement item. 

 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to approve the Strategic Plan with 

the 5Year Capital Improvements Schedule, and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez 
seconded the motion. 

 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 

closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  

Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie 
Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all 
voting Yes. 

 
14. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
 There was no Unfinished Business. 
 
15. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. DISCUSSION REGARDING FERAL CATS (Commissioner Richard 
 Chervony) 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony discussed the need for enforcement to address 
 feral cats and dog problem in the Village.  Suggestions were made to also 
 consider having feeding times and feeding zones. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments. 
 
 Michael O’Connell and Cecilia Veloz, of 7504 Bounty Avenue, addressed the 
 Commission and discussed possible solutions to the cat problem in the Village. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
B. DISCUSSION REGARDING DOGGIE WASTE STATIONS,  BENCHES, 
 AND TRASH RECEPTABLES (Commissioner Richard Chervony) 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to direct the Village Manager to 
 provide two benches for the entrance to North Bay Island (one on each side of the 
 wall), 10 garbage/recycling combination containers (4 for Treasure Island, 4 for 
 Harbor Island, and 2 for North Bay Island to be placed adjacent to the 
 benches) and two (2) doggie bag stations to be placed beside the benches and 
 garbage cans. Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez seconded the motion, which was 

Page 274



 adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Commissioner 
 Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps, 
 Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all voting Yes. 
 
C. LANDSCAPING WITH FLOWERS AROUND THE HARBOR 
 ISLAND MONUMENT (Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez) 

 
The flower options will be provided to the Village Manager for submittal to the 
Community Enhancement Board, for their recommendation. 

D. CANCELLATION OF JULY/AUGUST COMMISSION MEETING 
 PURSUANT TO SECTION 3.09(A) OF THE VILLAGE CHARTER 

 
 Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez made a motion to cancel the August 2016 
 Commission Meeting.  Commissioner Andreana Jackson seconded the motion, 
 which  was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  Mayor 
 Connie Leon- Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, Commissioner Richard 
 Chervony, Commissioner Andreana Jackson, and Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez 
 all voting Yes.   

 
E. DISCUSSION REGARDING INSTALLATION OF PULL UP/DIP BARS 
 AT DR. PAUL VOGEL PARK (Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps) 
 
 Without objection, the Village Manager was directed to include permanent Pull-
 Up/Dip Bars in the Fiscal Year 2017 Proposed Budget. 
 
F. APPOINTMENT OF ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to appoint Carlos Rodriguez, of 
 7421 Center Bay Drive and Mary Kramer, of 7610 Coquina Drive, to the Citizens 
 Budget & Oversight Board, and Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps seconded the motion. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 
 closed the floor to public comments. 
 
 
 
 
 
  The vote was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote.  The vote was as follows:  
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie 
 Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Commissioner Richard Chervony all 
 voting Yes. 
 
 Commissioner Richard Chervony made a motion to appoint Jose R. Alvarez, of 
 7610 Coquina Drive and Carlos Rodriguez, of 7421 Center Bay Drive, to the 
 Business Development Advisory Board Meeting.   Mayor Connie Leon-Kreps 
 seconded the motion.  
 
 The Mayor opened the floor to public comments.  There being no speakers, she 
 closed the floor to public comments. 

Page 275



 
 The motion was adopted by a 5-0 roll call vote. The vote was as follows:  
 Commissioner Andreana Jackson, Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez, Mayor Connie 
 Leon-Kreps, Commissioner Eddie Lim, and Commissioner  Richard Chervony all 
 voting Yes. 

 
 G. BAYSHORE YACHT & TENNIS CLUB CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION 
  (“BAYSHORE”)  (Vice Mayor Jorge Gonzalez) 
 

 1. Feasibility of Bayshore utilizing their existing unimproved Tennis   
  Court  for Parking on an emergency basis 
 2. Issuance of Parking Decals to Bayshore on an emergency basis 
 3. Contacting the existing Trust regarding the Feasibility of Bayshore  
  residents parking on the old Village Hall Lot 
 
 The item was withdrawn. 

 
16. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
 No Minutes were submitted for approval. 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 11:45 p.m. 
 

Prepared by:  Yvonne P. Hamilton 
                      Village Clerk 
 
Adopted by North Bay Village on 
 
this 14th day of June 2016. 
 
_________________________________ 
Connie Leon-Kreps, Mayor 

 
 

(Note:  The Minutes are not a verbatim record of the meeting.  A copy of the audio recording is available at the Village Clerk’s 
Office until the time for disposition in accordance with the Records Disposition and other Public Records Law.) 

Page 276



MONTHLY STAT 
REPORTS 



6/3/2016 1:42:44 PM Page 1 of 6

MAY 2016 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT
North Bay Village, FL Group Summary

For Fiscal: 2015-2016 Period Ending: 05/31/2016

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

Fund: 001 - GENERAL
Revenue

4,496,252.40153,127.105,113,270.00 5,113,270.00 0.00 -617,017.6031 - Taxes 12.07 %
213,684.8332,077.30450,000.00 450,000.00 0.00 -236,315.1732 - Licenses, Fees & Permits 52.51 %
507,363.5769,348.53810,000.00 810,000.00 0.00 -302,636.4333 - Intergovernmental Revenues 37.36 %

47,732.076,181.3383,180.00 83,180.00 0.00 -35,447.9334 - Charges for Services 42.62 %
61,461.029,664.0172,000.00 72,000.00 0.00 -10,538.9835 - Fines & Forfeits 14.64 %

118,919.1811,836.1384,000.00 84,815.51 0.00 34,103.6736 - Miscellaneous Revenues 40.21 %
0.000.000.00 126,239.94 0.00 -126,239.9438 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %

5,445,413.07282,234.406,612,450.00 6,739,505.45 0.00 -1,294,092.38Revenue Total: 19.20 %

Expense
21,439.532,333.0949,695.00 49,695.00 0.00 28,255.47511 - LEGISLATIVE 56.86 %

234,944.6829,936.82409,171.00 409,171.00 0.00 174,226.32512 - EXECUTIVE 42.58 %
79,026.0610,200.73156,012.00 156,012.00 400.00 76,585.94513 - FINANCIAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 49.09 %
87,353.647,850.00165,600.00 165,600.00 40,000.00 38,246.36514 - LEGAL COUNSEL 23.10 %

522,202.5043,801.101,011,545.00 1,026,507.00 84,124.82 420,179.68519 - OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES 40.93 %
2,704,769.62341,225.074,566,078.00 4,678,171.45 75,372.12 1,898,029.71521 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 40.57 %

133,915.332,850.00254,349.00 254,349.00 2,850.00 117,583.67574 - SPECIAL EVENTS 46.23 %
3,783,651.36438,196.816,612,450.00 6,739,505.45 202,746.94 2,753,107.15Expense Total: 40.85 %

1,661,761.71-155,962.410.00 0.00 -202,746.94 1,459,014.77Fund: 001 - GENERAL Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 105 - STATE FORFEITURES
Revenue

11,900.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 11,900.0035 - Fines & Forfeits 0.00 %
53.570.000.00 0.00 0.00 53.5736 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %

11,953.570.000.00 0.00 0.00 11,953.57Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Expense
34,814.960.000.00 0.00 32,896.91 -67,711.87521 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 0.00 %
34,814.960.000.00 0.00 32,896.91 -67,711.87Expense Total: 0.00 %

-22,861.390.000.00 0.00 -32,896.91 -55,758.30Fund: 105 - STATE FORFEITURES Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 107 - FEDERAL FORFEITURES
Revenue

312,853.340.000.00 0.00 0.00 312,853.3435 - Fines & Forfeits 0.00 %
26,454.672,174.250.00 0.00 0.00 26,454.6736 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %



MAY 2016 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2015-2016 Period Ending: 05/31/2016

6/3/2016 1:42:44 PM Page 2 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

339,308.012,174.250.00 0.00 0.00 339,308.01Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Expense
296,181.7747,825.26424,420.00 424,420.00 3,720.00 124,518.23521 - LAW ENFORCEMENT 29.34 %
296,181.7747,825.26424,420.00 424,420.00 3,720.00 124,518.23Expense Total: 29.34 %

43,126.24-45,651.01-424,420.00 -424,420.00 -3,720.00 463,826.24Fund: 107 - FEDERAL FORFEITURES Surplus (Deficit): 109.28 %

Fund: 110 - PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND
Expense

126,765.010.000.00 0.00 437.50 -127,202.51572 - PARKS AND RECREATION 0.00 %
126,765.010.000.00 0.00 437.50 -127,202.51Expense Total: 0.00 %

126,765.010.000.00 0.00 437.50 -127,202.51Fund: 110 - PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND Total: 0.00 %

Fund: 111 - BUILDING FEES FUND
Revenue

469,061.3322,402.64708,000.00 708,000.00 0.00 -238,938.6732 - Licenses, Fees & Permits 33.75 %
13,618.001,036.2510,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 3,618.0036 - Miscellaneous Revenues -36.18 %

0.000.0053,406.00 53,406.00 0.00 -53,406.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %
482,679.3323,438.89771,406.00 771,406.00 0.00 -288,726.67Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 37.43 %

Expense
516,593.3656,689.95771,406.00 811,974.45 104,428.68 190,952.41524 - PROTECTIVE INSPECTIONS 23.52 %
516,593.3656,689.95771,406.00 811,974.45 104,428.68 190,952.41Expense Total: 23.52 %

-33,914.03-33,251.060.00 -40,568.45 -104,428.68 -97,774.26Fund: 111 - BUILDING FEES FUND Surplus (Deficit): -241.01 %

Fund: 112 - STREET MAINTENANCE FUND
Revenue

68,117.7410,086.22119,499.00 119,499.00 0.00 -51,381.2631 - Taxes 43.00 %
34,915.204,354.0556,807.80 56,807.80 0.00 -21,892.6033 - Intergovernmental Revenues 38.54 %

708.030.002,832.20 2,832.20 0.00 -2,124.1734 - Charges for Services 75.00 %
667.880.002,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 -1,332.1236 - Miscellaneous Revenues 66.61 %

0.000.00134,499.00 134,499.00 0.00 -134,499.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %
104,408.8514,440.27315,638.00 315,638.00 0.00 -211,229.15Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 66.92 %

Expense
161,755.4313,034.87315,638.00 315,638.00 52,569.39 101,313.18541 - ROADS AND STREET FACILITIES 32.10 %
161,755.4313,034.87315,638.00 315,638.00 52,569.39 101,313.18Expense Total: 32.10 %

-57,346.581,405.400.00 0.00 -52,569.39 -109,915.97Fund: 112 - STREET MAINTENANCE FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 114 - AFTER SCHOOL SUMMER CAMP
Revenue

82,165.178,774.83169,252.00 169,252.00 0.00 -87,086.8333 - Intergovernmental Revenues 51.45 %
0.000.007,706.00 22,106.00 0.00 -22,106.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %

82,165.178,774.83176,958.00 191,358.00 0.00 -109,192.83Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 57.06 %



MAY 2016 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2015-2016 Period Ending: 05/31/2016

6/3/2016 1:42:44 PM Page 3 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

Expense
77,798.7412,348.99176,958.00 191,358.00 0.00 113,559.26572 - PARKS AND RECREATION 59.34 %
77,798.7412,348.99176,958.00 191,358.00 0.00 113,559.26Expense Total: 59.34 %

4,366.43-3,574.160.00 0.00 0.00 4,366.43Fund: 114 - AFTER SCHOOL SUMMER CAMP Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 115 - TRANSPORTATION FUND
Revenue

133,646.0023,273.00312,674.00 312,674.00 0.00 -179,028.0031 - Taxes 57.26 %
0.000.000.00 0.00 -1,500.00 -1,500.0035 - Fines & Forfeits 0.00 %
0.000.002,000.00 2,000.00 0.00 -2,000.0036 - Miscellaneous Revenues 100.00 %
0.000.00707,963.00 707,963.00 0.00 -707,963.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %

133,646.0023,273.001,022,637.00 1,022,637.00 -1,500.00 -890,491.00Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 87.08 %

Expense
185,210.225,597.091,022,637.00 1,022,637.00 -1,149.82 838,576.60541 - ROADS AND STREET FACILITIES 82.00 %
185,210.225,597.091,022,637.00 1,022,637.00 -1,149.82 838,576.60Expense Total: 82.00 %

-51,564.2217,675.910.00 0.00 -350.18 -51,914.40Fund: 115 - TRANSPORTATION FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 250 - DEBT SERVICE
Revenue

610,304.8813,422.44652,848.00 652,848.00 0.00 -42,543.1231 - Taxes 6.52 %
610,304.8813,422.44652,848.00 652,848.00 0.00 -42,543.12Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 6.52 %

Expense
223,829.870.00652,848.00 652,848.00 0.00 429,018.13517 - DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS 65.71 %
223,829.870.00652,848.00 652,848.00 0.00 429,018.13Expense Total: 65.71 %

386,475.0113,422.440.00 0.00 0.00 386,475.01Fund: 250 - DEBT SERVICE Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 325 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
Revenue

449.730.000.00 0.00 0.00 449.7336 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %
0.000.001,096,250.00 1,096,250.00 0.00 -1,096,250.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %

449.730.001,096,250.00 1,096,250.00 0.00 -1,095,800.27Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 99.96 %

Expense
9,297.000.001,096,250.00 1,096,250.00 0.00 1,086,953.00630 - CAPITAL PROJECTS 99.15 %
9,297.000.001,096,250.00 1,096,250.00 0.00 1,086,953.00Expense Total: 99.15 %

-8,847.270.000.00 0.00 0.00 -8,847.27Fund: 325 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 360 - WATER IMPROVEMENTS TRUST
Revenue

0.000.005,999,923.00 5,999,923.00 0.00 -5,999,923.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %
0.000.005,999,923.00 5,999,923.00 0.00 -5,999,923.00Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 100.00 %

Expense
29,610.000.005,999,923.00 5,999,923.00 0.00 5,970,313.00533 - WATER UTILITY 99.51 %



MAY 2016 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2015-2016 Period Ending: 05/31/2016

6/3/2016 1:42:44 PM Page 4 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

29,610.000.005,999,923.00 5,999,923.00 0.00 5,970,313.00Expense Total: 99.51 %

-29,610.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 -29,610.00Fund: 360 - WATER IMPROVEMENTS TRUST Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 365 - SEWER IMPROVEMENTS
Revenue

23.680.000.00 0.00 0.00 23.6836 - Miscellaneous Revenues 0.00 %
134,439.4516,804.924,601,324.00 4,601,324.00 0.00 -4,466,884.5538 - Other Sources & Transfers In 97.08 %
134,463.1316,804.924,601,324.00 4,601,324.00 0.00 -4,466,860.87Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 97.08 %

Expense
141,046.1432,762.074,601,324.00 4,601,324.00 0.00 4,460,277.86535 - SEWER/WASTERWATER SERVICE 96.93 %
141,046.1432,762.074,601,324.00 4,601,324.00 0.00 4,460,277.86Expense Total: 96.93 %

-6,583.01-15,957.150.00 0.00 0.00 -6,583.01Fund: 365 - SEWER IMPROVEMENTS Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 370 - SANITATION IMPROVEMENTS
Revenue

0.000.0065,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 -65,000.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %
0.000.0065,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 -65,000.00Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 100.00 %

Expense
0.000.0065,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 65,000.00534 - GARBAGE/SOLID WASTE SERVI 100.00 %
0.000.0065,000.00 65,000.00 0.00 65,000.00Expense Total: 100.00 %

0.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00Fund: 370 - SANITATION IMPROVEMENTS Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 430 - UTILITIES
Revenue

3,629,005.67442,929.105,380,930.00 5,380,930.00 0.00 -1,751,924.3334 - Charges for Services 32.56 %
1,165.00125.001,917.00 1,917.00 0.00 -752.0036 - Miscellaneous Revenues 39.23 %

0.000.00-360,532.00 -360,532.00 0.00 360,532.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %
3,630,170.67443,054.105,022,315.00 5,022,315.00 0.00 -1,392,144.33Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 27.72 %

Expense
1,301,428.48180,234.472,623,448.00 2,623,448.00 29,448.72 1,292,570.80533 - WATER UTILITY 49.27 %

606,991.1368,386.28877,206.00 877,206.00 10,032.77 260,182.10534 - GARBAGE/SOLID WASTE SERVI 29.66 %
1,133,623.90116,313.671,521,661.00 1,521,661.00 1,055.00 386,982.10535 - SEWER/WASTERWATER SERVICE 25.43 %
3,042,043.51364,934.425,022,315.00 5,022,315.00 40,536.49 1,939,735.00Expense Total: 38.62 %

588,127.1678,119.680.00 0.00 -40,536.49 547,590.67Fund: 430 - UTILITIES Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Fund: 440 - STORM WATER
Revenue

77,524.209,669.17112,000.00 112,000.00 0.00 -34,475.8034 - Charges for Services 30.78 %
0.000.00360,533.00 360,533.00 0.00 -360,533.0038 - Other Sources & Transfers In 100.00 %

77,524.209,669.17472,533.00 472,533.00 0.00 -395,008.80Revenue Surplus (Deficit): 83.59 %

Expense
46,291.221,910.00472,533.00 472,533.00 4,827.59 421,414.19538 - STORMWATER MANAGEMENT 89.18 %



MAY 2016 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2015-2016 Period Ending: 05/31/2016

6/3/2016 1:42:44 PM Page 5 of 6

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget
Percent

RemainingDepartment;RevCategor…

46,291.221,910.00472,533.00 472,533.00 4,827.59 421,414.19Expense Total: 89.18 %

31,232.987,759.170.00 0.00 -4,827.59 26,405.39Fund: 440 - STORM WATER Surplus (Deficit): 0.00 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): -136,013.19 2,377,598.02-424,420.00 -464,988.45 -442,513.68 2,400,072.79 516.16 %



MAY 2016 ALL FUNDS MONTHLY BUDGET REPORT For Fiscal: 2015-2016 Period Ending: 05/31/2016

6/3/2016 1:42:44 PM Page 6 of 6

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity Encumbrances
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

001 - GENERAL 1,661,761.71-155,962.410.00 0.00 -202,746.94 1,459,014.77
105 - STATE FORFEITURES -22,861.390.000.00 0.00 -32,896.91 -55,758.30
107 - FEDERAL FORFEITURES 43,126.24-45,651.01-424,420.00 -424,420.00 -3,720.00 463,826.24
110 - PARKS IMPROVEMENT FUND -126,765.010.000.00 0.00 -437.50 -127,202.51
111 - BUILDING FEES FUND -33,914.03-33,251.060.00 -40,568.45 -104,428.68 -97,774.26
112 - STREET MAINTENANCE FUND -57,346.581,405.400.00 0.00 -52,569.39 -109,915.97
114 - AFTER SCHOOL SUMMER CAMP 4,366.43-3,574.160.00 0.00 0.00 4,366.43
115 - TRANSPORTATION FUND -51,564.2217,675.910.00 0.00 -350.18 -51,914.40
250 - DEBT SERVICE 386,475.0113,422.440.00 0.00 0.00 386,475.01
325 - CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -8,847.270.000.00 0.00 0.00 -8,847.27
360 - WATER IMPROVEMENTS TRUST -29,610.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 -29,610.00
365 - SEWER IMPROVEMENTS -6,583.01-15,957.150.00 0.00 0.00 -6,583.01
370 - SANITATION IMPROVEMENTS 0.000.000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
430 - UTILITIES 588,127.1678,119.680.00 0.00 -40,536.49 547,590.67
440 - STORM WATER 31,232.987,759.170.00 0.00 -4,827.59 26,405.39

Report Surplus (Deficit): -136,013.19 2,377,598.02-424,420.00 -464,988.45 -442,513.68 2,400,072.79



NORTH BAY VILLAGE POLICE DEPARTMENT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
CODE ENFORCEMENT UNIT                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

MONTHLY TOTALS FOR MAY 2016 

DESCRIPTION 
NORTH 

BAY 
ISLAND 

HARBOR 
ISLAND 

TREASURE 
ISLAND TOTALS 

SIDEWALK/ROADWAY OBSTRUCTED 1   3 4 
LANDSCAPING NOT MAINTAINED     3 3 
SIGN IN DISREPAIR/ILLEGAL SIGN   1 2 3 
EXCESSIVE YARD WASTE PILE 1   1 2 
DUMPING/LITTER   2 2 4 
TRASH/RECYCLE CANS VIOLATION   1   1 
DUMPSTER VIOLATION   1 5 6 
OUTSIDE STORAGE 1   1 2 
TRASH/RUBBISH/DEBRIS   1 6 7 
FENCE IN DISREPAIR     1 1 
BUILDING MAINTENANCE VIOLATION   1 2 3 
PARKING LOT/DRIVEWAY IN DISREPAIR     3 3 
ILLEGAL USE OF PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 1 2 1 4 
PERMIT VIOLATIONS/ILLEGAL 
WORK/POSTING/FRAUD 1 1 5 7 
HEALTH HAZARD     1 1 
ROAD DEBRIS REMOVED     1 1 
COMMERCIAL VEHICLE VIOLATION 1 1 5 7 
ILLEGAL FISHING   1   1 
OTHER     3 3 
TOTAL INCIDENTS 6 12 45 63 
Phone Calls  5 26 24 55 
Meetings /with property owner/contractor 5 23 26 54 
Initial Inspections 7 18 41 66 
Reinspections 28 56 96 180 
Complaints Received 2 11 11 24 
Case Closed 2 6 12 20 
Lien Search    5 13 18 
Verbal Warnings Issued   5 5 10 
Written Warnings Issued 6 3 21 30 
Citation issued/Fines charged     9 9 
Business Tax Review     5 5 
Zoning/Permit/Plan Review     2 2 
Red Tag or Notice Posting     2 2 
Certificate of Occupancy (C.O./T.C.O.)     1 1 

 






	June 14, 2016 Village Commission Agenda
	8 - June 2016 Village Manager's Report
	8A - May 2016 Grant Writer's Report
	10A - Causeway Tower Lease Suites #101
	10B - Causeway Tower Lease Suite #300
	10C - Resolution - Education Compact
	10D - Handicapped Parking Violation Fees
	10E - Coastal Systems International, Inc
	12A - Utility Lines 2016 Special Election Ballot
	12B - Agenda Procedures
	13A - 7601 East Treasure Drive Application
	13B - 1755 Kennedy Causeway Extension
	13C - Ordinance - Ch. 36 Procurement Requirements
	13D - Ordinance - Ch. 32 Handbills
	14A - Resolution - Miami Beach Chamber
	15A - Art Cultural & Special Events Board Appointment
	15C - Florida League of Cities, Inc. Voting Delegate
	15D - Resolution - 1755 NBV, LLC
	16A - April 12, 2016 Village Commission Meeting Minutes
	16B - May 10, 2016 Village Commission Meeting Minutes
	June 2016 Monthly Stat Reports



